
BOARD OF REGISTRATION AND ELECTIONS 
APPROVED MINUTES 

 

 

  
REGULAR MEETING – April 9, 2026 

 
 

The Fulton County Board of Registration and Elections met in Regular Session on Thursday, April 
9, 2026, at 11:00 a.m. 
 

The meeting was recorded and is available for your review on 
FGTV YouTube Channel 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCYH7E0jH6HxE-3KTRluH8SQ 

 
 

Board Members Present Ms. Sherri Allen, Chairperson 
                                              Mrs. Teresa Crawford 

Mr. Douglass Selby 
 Ms. Julie Adams  
 

 

Staff Attending: Mrs. Nadine E. Williams, Director; Mr. John Ross, Information Systems 

Manager; Mrs. Kathryn Glenn, Registration Chief; Mrs. Marcia Ridley, Election Chief; Mrs. Janell 

Barganier, Financial Systems Manager; Ms. LaShandra Little, VEO Manager; Ms. Amber Culver, 

Administrative Coordinator; Ms. Alisha Davis, Administrative Coordinator  
 

External Affairs (EA) and Fulton Government TV (FGTV): Ms. Regina Waller, Division 

Manager; Mr. James Reese (FGTV), Mr. Tyree Spencer (FGTV), Mrs. Nerieda Andrews (FGTV), Mr. 

Kendrick Kirkpatrick (FGTV)   
 

Fulton County Police: Present 
 

Legal: Mr. Chad Alexis, Supervising Counsel and Ms. Karen Pachuta, Special Counsel 
 
 

ACRONYMS:  

  
BRE- Board of Registration and Elections    BMDs- Ballot Marking Devices  
DRE- Department of Registration and Elections    SOS- Secretary of State’s  
EHOC- Elections Hub and Operations Center    SEB- State Election Board  
BOC- Board of Commissioners    DDS- Department of Driver Services  
ABM- Absentee by Mail    CERA- Certified Elections Registration Administrator  
L&A- Logic and Accuracy Testing                GARViS- Georgia Registered Voter Information System  
VEO- Voter Education and Outreach                       GAVREO- Georgia Voter Registration and Elected Officials 
REIF- Reporting Elections Systems Issue Form                      AV- Advance Voting 

NVRA- National Voter Registration Act ORR- Open Records Request 

       
 

#1– APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Chair Allen entertained a motion to approve the agenda. The motion was made by Mrs. 
Crawford, seconded by Ms. Adams, and carried by a unanimous vote of 4-0. 
 
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCYH7E0jH6HxE-3KTRluH8SQ


APPROVED MINUTES 
April 9, 2026- REGULAR MEETING 

2 | P a g e  

 

#2– PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Board, the Department, and members of the public recited. 

 
#3-COMMUNICATIONS AND PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Timestamp: 1:40-22:20 
Link: Fulton County Board of Registration & Elections Meeting April 9, 2026 - YouTube 
 
Chair Allen requested the agenda to be amended to add the emergency polling place 
change that impacted voters assigned to the Istanbul Cultural Center.  This location has 
declined to be a precinct on Election Day due to the safety concerns of their staff and 
voters. 
 
Chair Allen entertained a motion to amend the agenda to add the Discussion of 
Emergency Polling Place Changes before the list maintenance presentation. The motion 
was made by Mrs. Crawford, seconded by Mr. Selby, and carried by a unanimous vote 
of 4-0. 
 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
 
 

#4- APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 
 

➢ Regular Meeting- March 11, 2026 
➢ Special Meeting- March 16, 2026 

 

Chair Allen entertained a motion to approve the minutes as listed. The motion was made 
by Mrs. Crawford, seconded by Mr. Selby, and carried by a unanimous vote of 4-0. 
 
 
 

#5-MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT: MARCH 
▪ Election Update on May 19th, General Primary, Special, and Nonpartisan 

Election 
 
Robust Discussion 

Link: 22:55-43:20 

Timestamp: Fulton County Board of Registration & Elections Meeting April 9, 2026 - YouTube 

 
Director Williams greeted and provided the BRE a brief overview: 

▪ DRE preparation for the 2026 Election Cycle 
▪ Poll worker Training for Advance Voting (AV) and Election Day (ED) 
▪ Equipment Allocations 
▪ Confirming Polling Place locations 
▪ Processing Voter Registration applications prior to the deadline (April 20, 2026)  

 
Madam Director informed the BRE that they may ask questions regarding the monthly ops report. 
 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=6VxmB1lST8o
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=6VxmB1lST8o


APPROVED MINUTES 
April 9, 2026- REGULAR MEETING 

3 | P a g e  

 

Ms. Adams asked Director Williams was the DRE on target for hiring for AV and Election 
Day. 
 
Director Williams responded yes, for both Advance Voting (AV) and Election Day (ED) 
 
Ms. Adams inquired about daily pick-up of materials. 
 
Director Williams explained the process: 

▪ Two Couriers per location 
▪ Chain of custody forms completed 
▪ Materials secured and delivered to the Hub 
▪ Materials retained in the Secure retention area 

 
Ms. Adam inquired about the law regarding the homeless population to get them in 
compliance. 
 
Director Williams explained the website to reflect the legislative changes passed 
regarding homeless (unhoused) voters. Mechanism used to ensure voters are aware: 

▪ Homeless tile on the website: https://fultoncountyga.gov/Inside-Fulton-County/Fulton-County-Departments/Registration-and-

Elections/Homeless-Voter-Information https://fultoncountyga.gov/Inside-Fulton-County/Fulton-County-Departments/Registration-and-Elections/Homeless-Voter-
Information 

▪ Correspondence to homeless centers and churches 
o The Board was emailed that correspondence 
o Must use Election Hub as mailing address  

▪ Flagging addresses 
▪ VEO conducted events 
▪ Voters are flagged in GARViS  

 

Chair Allen suggested the BRE members provide places in their areas with the 
correspondence regarding unhoused citizens.  
 
Ms. Adams asked do the DRE track the number of voters registered at homeless shelters 
 
Director Williams addressed social media misinformation regarding unhoused voters 
that are registered.  She said that there’s a significant number of voters that are currently 
inactive in the database and most never voted.  
 
Chair Allen asked Chief Glenn for her insight on the unhoused community. 
 
Chief Glenn echoed Director Williams’ previous comments regarding unhoused voters. 
 
Mrs. Crawford reminded the public that it’s illegal to remove voters in accordance with 
NVRA.  The voter must request to be removed; otherwise, the voter can only be removed 
after 2 Federal Election without voting has passed 
https://www.justice.gov/crt/national-voter-registration-act-1993-nvra 
 
Ms. Adams inquired about the 18 time-limited couriers that are assigned to Advance 
Voting locations. 
 

https://www.justice.gov/crt/national-voter-registration-act-1993-nvra


APPROVED MINUTES 
April 9, 2026- REGULAR MEETING 

4 | P a g e  

 

Director Williams responded that we have those same positions every election. The 18 
couriers are included in that daily election material pick-up, but they have other duties as 
well. 
 
Election Update on May 19th, General Primary, Special, and Nonpartisan Election: 
 

▪ Ballot proofing completed 
▪ Composite Ballot posted on the webpage (all races) 
▪ To view your Sample ballot (the ballot assigned to the voter)  
▪ Please visit:   

https://mvp.sos.ga.gov/s/ 

▪ Polling locations will be updated after this meeting for the May 19th election and Possible 
Runoff election June 16th  
 
 

#6- UPDATE ON FULTON ELECTION FACTS -EXTERNAL AFFAIRS  
 

Director Williams commended External Affairs for assisting with getting this information 
on the website. The Department wanted to assist with combatting mis/disinformation 
regarding elections. 
 
Director Williams explained factual data was used to formulate this document.  

▪ 2020 Election 
▪ Sheriff Races 
▪ FBI Raid  

 

 
 

 
Ms. Adams asked did the DRE used the information previously provided to update 
Fulton Facts. 
 
Director Williams responded that the BRE received 2 emails regarding this information 
being published on the webpage and provided the link. 

 
 
 

https://mvp.sos.ga.gov/s/


APPROVED MINUTES 
April 9, 2026- REGULAR MEETING 

5 | P a g e  

 

 
 
 

#7- UPDATE ON TEXT/ EMAIL COMMUNICATION TOOL 
 
Director William provided an update to the new tool: 

▪ Trial Run completed 
▪ Messaging voters on AV start date 
▪ Messaging voters on precinct changes 
▪ Vendor improving display to look more official 
▪ Website  

o Update their information (mobile number and/ or email) on MVP to update their 
information: GA My Voter Page 

 
Ms. Crawford asked was the sequence of numbers corrected. 
 
Director Williams explained that is one of the updates that being resolved currently. 
 
Ms. Adams complimented the use of this tool and asked for data on voters that are 
using this tool. 
 
Director Williams explained that after utilizing the tool for a couple months, they will 
pull the data and update the board. 
  
Mr. Selby inquired about information to provide to voters during the upcoming election 
as a reminder that the DRE is utilizing a text/email platform. 
 
Director Williams confirmed that they will work with External Affairs to present some 
collateral to voters.  The DRE will print posters for voting locations. 
 

https://mvp.sos.ga.gov/s/


APPROVED MINUTES 
April 9, 2026- REGULAR MEETING 

6 | P a g e  

 

 
 

 

#8-REVIEW AND IMPACT OF NEW LEGISLATION 
➢ https://www.legis.ga.gov/legislation/all 

 

HB 369: Sent to Governor. Establishes nonpartisan elections for certain county officers and 
district attorneys in consolidated law enforcement counties where the coroner position has been 
abolished. Effective January 1, 2028.  
 
Sent to House for approval: 
 
 SB 214: Voting system modernization.  

• Requires non-QR code ballot marking systems by 2027  
• Mandates uniform statewide election equipment  
• Establishes advisory committee for certification  
• Adds ballot-on-demand security requirements  
• Allows expedited voting for voters with young children  
• Requires discrepancy investigations and OCR audit pilot  

 
HB 960 (SUB): Omnibus elections bill.  

• Requires public posting of eligible voter lists  
• Authorizes fines for failure to remove challenged registrations  
• Mandates hand-marked paper ballots (effective July 1, 2026, with exceptions)  
• Requires posting of voter participation and ballot images  
• Requires hand recounts at ≤2% margin  
• Updates audit procedures and oversight  

 
Sine Die: April 2 
 
Chair Allen asked did the DRE received any information from the Secretary of State’s 
office 
 
Director Williams answered that a notice was forwarded to election officials to be on 
standby for more information. 
 
Mrs. Crawford recommended that the Director start reviewing budgetary impact and 

https://www.legis.ga.gov/legislation/all


APPROVED MINUTES 
April 9, 2026- REGULAR MEETING 

7 | P a g e  

 

getting costs regarding items needed, due to the failed legislation (SB 214) in the 
General Assembly. 
 
Director Williams responded that she would draft an estimate.  She confirmed that it 
will be Millions. 
 
Mr. Selby requested the legal impact of the 2 bills not passing and the path forward to 
complying  
 
Attorney Pachuta provided a brief overview SB 189: 

▪ No changes for the General Primary election, May 19th  
▪ Law take effect on July 1, 2026 
▪ QR Codes are not to be used to tabulate the ballots 
▪ Currently the scanners are programmed to utilize the QR Code 
▪ Last year SOS requested funds to reprogram the scanners 
▪ State law requires uniform election systems (OCGA 21-2-300) 
▪ Guidance is expected prior to deadline 
▪ Possible Special Session called to resolve prior to July 1, 2026 
▪ Provided possible voting method scenarios  

 
Ms. Adams stated since we don’t have a legal method of voting after July 1st, the Director 
shouldn’t be wasting time on budgetary possibilities. 
 
Director Willliams recalled hand counting 1 contest (Presidential race) in 2020 and the 
amount of personnel (not volunteers) and space required to conduct a tally. She said to 
conduct it was a large undertaken. 
  

 
#9-APPROVAL OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENTS (IGAS): 

➢ City of Fairburn 
➢ City of South Fulton 

 
Director Williams explained that the IGAs: 

▪ Same Standard agreements between both cities 
▪ No additional Cost the election will be conducted in conjunction with the General 

Primary Election 
▪ Runoff Scenarios: no state or county runoff the cities will incur cost, State or county 

runoff no cost to cities 

 
Chair Allen entertained a motion to approve the Intergovernmental Agreements (IGAs) 
for the City of Fairburn and South Fulton. The motion was made by Ms. Adams, seconded 
by Mrs. Crawford, and carried by a unanimous vote of 4-0. 
 
 
 
 
 



APPROVED MINUTES 
April 9, 2026- REGULAR MEETING 

8 | P a g e  

 

#10-REVIEW OF POLICY ON ABSENTEE BALLOT RETURN AT AV 
LOCATIONS: 
 
Robust Discussion 
 

Link: 48:20- 1:05 

Timestamp: Fulton County Board of Registration & Elections Meeting April 9, 2026 - YouTube 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=6VxmB1lST8o


APPROVED MINUTES 
April 9, 2026- REGULAR MEETING 

9 | P a g e  

 

Chair Allen requested Director Williams provide an overview. 
 
Director Williams explained the overall process outlined in the information the BRE 
received. 
 
Chair Allen requested legal counsel to speak to the legality of the process. 
 
Attorney Pachuta referenced O.C.G.A 21-2-382 that governs the process for handling 
Absentee by Mail (ABM). 
 
Chair Allen inquired about case law on the ABM process 

 
Attorney Pachuta answered yes, a state and federal judge both agreed that this process 
was allowable in accordance with the election code. 
 
Ms. Adams asked if the public will be permitted to view this process of the couriers 
returning to the Hub with materials. 
 
Director Williams responded that it would be difficult logistically, but she will confer with 
legal on the how to proceed. 
 
Chair Allen requested legal provide clarity to the BRE and DRE on the public’s ability to 
access secure areas  
 
Ms. Adams explained that because you’re moving ballots, even if it’s not allowed the 
DRE should allow public access to be transparent.  
 
Director Williams responded per SOS directives the DRE is required to remove ballots 
after the 1500 count.  She said no one has ever asked to view the secure area upon 
returning to the Election’s Hub. 
 
Attorney Pachuta responded that she would confirm allowable public access for this 
process. 
 
Ms. Selby asked if there are safeguards in place for this process and does she have any 
concerns. 
 
Director Williams outlined the process and shared checks and balances that streamlined 
the process. Madam Director responded no concerns due the process and procedures 
implemented.   
 
Ms. Adams asked if the information in the BRE packet information was provided online. 
 
Director Williams answered no, the DRE’s Standard Operation Procedures (SOPs) are 
not provided online. 
 



APPROVED MINUTES 
April 9, 2026- REGULAR MEETING 

10 | P a g e  

 

Ms. Adams requested additional time to review the BRE proposed policy, because it was 
disseminated today. 

 
 
#11- EMERGENCY POLLING PLACE CHANGES 
 
  

 
Chair Allen asked Director Williams prior to making polling place changes what is 
your process. 
 
Director Williams outlined various entities requesting feedback that could impact your 
constituents/ voters: 

▪ Municipal Clerks receive correspondence on assistance with identifying possible 
locations 

▪ Municipal Clerks feedback regarding the move 
▪ Board of Commissioners (BOC) correspondence regarding the move 
▪ BOC correspondence on assistance with identifying possible locations 

 
Director Williams explained that we moved out Manning Oaks Elementary School due 
parental complaints. The DRE surveyed the area and found the Istanbul Cultural Center.   

▪ location was clean and well maintained 
▪ Adequate spacing for voters 
▪ Owners/ Facilitators were very kind 

 
Madam Director explained that due to some racist rhetoric on social media the 
location has decline to be a polling place. 
 
Chair Allen asked did anyone from the city expressed concerns prior to social media.  
Madam Chair asked if they  
 
Director Williams explained that the DRE utilizes all types of Faith based facilities and 
the only thing that is considered is ADA compliant and adequate space  
 
Director Williams thanked Istanbul Cultural Center and expressed the DRE’s and 
disappointment with the removal of this location. 

 
 
 
 
 



APPROVED MINUTES 
April 9, 2026- REGULAR MEETING 

11 | P a g e  

 

#12-PRESENTATION ON DAILY VOTER ROLL/ LIST MAINTENANCE 
PROCESS 
 
Chief Glenn greeted the BRE and public and began presenting on List Maintenance 
Process: 
 

 
 

 
 



APPROVED MINUTES 
April 9, 2026- REGULAR MEETING 

12 | P a g e  

 

 
 

 

 
 



APPROVED MINUTES 
April 9, 2026- REGULAR MEETING 

13 | P a g e  

 

Additional list maintenance processes: 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



APPROVED MINUTES 
April 9, 2026- REGULAR MEETING 

14 | P a g e  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
Chair Allen asked when did the GARViS registration tool implemented. 
 



APPROVED MINUTES 
April 9, 2026- REGULAR MEETING 

15 | P a g e  

 

Chief Glenn responded that SOS introduced this mechanism in December 2025, but the 
DRE was still conducting elections.  The DRE began processing in January 2026. 
 
Madam Chief shared the Voter Registration Division, dashboard started with 53K+ items 
and that has been reduced to 13K+. 
 
Chair Allen inquired about personnel. 
 
Chief Glenn provided a total of 16 personnel including supervisors.  She explained that 
the entire team, including her completes list maintenance daily. 
 
Ms. Adams expressed concerns regarding ERIC (Electronic Registration Information Center) 

because not all states participate in this program.  She asked Chief Glenn about ERIC 
and Georgia’s boarding states:  South Carolina, North Carolina, Alabama, Tennessee, 
Florida. ERIC: https://ericstates.org/ 
 

 
 
 
Chief Glenn informed the BRE that SOS have a formal agreement with every bordering 
that does not participate with ERIC except Florida because they do not protect PII. 
 

CHALLENGE HEARING 
Pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 21-2-6(b) 

Tiffany Henyard, Candidate for Fulton County Commission, District 5 
 
Director Williams explained that she received a call from the requester notifying the 
department that she did not receive notice of the hearing. Ms. Henyard explained that she 
was made aware from news media outlets. 
 
Madam Director explained that there was a typo in the email address. 
 
Chair Allen entertained a motion to continue the hearing to give adequate notice to the 
Challenger listed. The motion was made by Ms. Adams, seconded by Mrs. Crawford, 
and carried by a unanimous vote of 4-0. 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

The Board did not convene into executive session. 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business, Chair Allen entertained a motion to adjourn. Mrs. 

https://ericstates.org/


APPROVED MINUTES 
April 9, 2026- REGULAR MEETING 

16 | P a g e  

 

Crawford moved to adjourn the meeting; Ms. Adams seconded the motion.  There being 

no further business on the agenda, the Board adjourned the meeting at 12:50 p.m.  

 

The meeting was adjourned. 
       

 

 

Prepared by: 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Mariska Bodison, Board Secretary 


